
 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

  TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 

JOINT MEETING OF WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP MEETING 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approval of the minutes from the January 15, 2013 Joint Meeting with Washington Township 
Trustees and Piqua City Commission 

 
 NEW BUSINESS 
  

2. RES. NO. R-60-13 
A Resolution declaring the intention to levy a tax in excess of the ten mill limitation and requesting 
the Auditor of Miami County Ohio certification pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 5705.03 

 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 RESIDENCE PRIDE AWARDS 
 Compton Family    707 Caldwell Street 
 Ben & Carol Groff    225 Jackson Street 
 Gregory & Trudy Heath   839 W. Grant Street 
 Thomas & Ana Stahl    206 Fifth Street 
 Johnny & Rita Smith    209 South Street 
 
 PROCLAMATION: National Bike Month – Active Living Advisory Council 
 
 PROCLAMATION: Four Seasons Garden Club – Ms. Sandy Knous-Wolf 
 
 PROCLAMATION: Police Week in the City of Piqua – Police Chief Bruce Jamison 
 

 
              REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

   
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Approval of the minutes from the April 16, 2013 Regular City Commission Meeting  
 

2. RES. NO. R-61-13  
A Resolution appointing a member to the Community Diversity Committee 
 



 2

 
 

3. RES. NO. R-62-13 
A Resolution authorizing preliminary legislation with the Ohio Department of Transportation 
(ODOT) for the spot paving and resurfacing of I-75 from straight line mileage 14.15 to straight 
line mileage 19.95 
 

 NEW BUSINESS 
 

4. RES. NO. R-63-13 
A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Valley Ford Truck, Inc. for the purchase of an  
F-450 Dump Truck 

 
5. RES. NO. R-64-13 

A Resolution approving the application for placement of farmland in an Agricultural District 
filed by Donald E. Apple for Parcel N44-076917 in the City of Piqua 

 
6. RES. NO. R-65-13 

A Resolution requesting final legislation to enter into an agreement with the Ohio Department 
of Transportation for the CR-25A Phase II reconstruction project 

 
7. RES. NO. R-66-13 

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into the LPA Federal Local-LET Project 
agreement with the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) for the CR 25-A resurfacing 
project  

 
8. RES. NO. R-67-13 

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with amendment with Evans 
Landscaping, Inc. for the environmental remediation and demolition of the Piqua Memorial 
Medical Center Site at a cost not to exceed $1,753,996 and authorizing Evans Landscaping, Inc. 
to proceed with the project 

 
9. RES. NO. R-68-13 

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with amendment with Burgess 
and Niple, Inc. for the management, oversight and preparation of the No Further Action Letter for 
the environmental remediation and demolition of the Piqua Memorial Medical Center site at a  
cost not to exceed $257,819.56 and authorizing Burgess and Niple, Inc. to proceed with the project 

 
10. RES. NO. R-69-13 

A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with DLZ for an engineering 
evaluation of the Hydraulic Canal Levee, preparing and operations, maintenance and 
inspections (OM & I) manual for hydraulic canal levee, and emergency action plans (EAP) 
for Echo Lake and Franz Pond 

 
11. RES. NO. R-70-13 

A Resolution awarding a contract for the purchase of Ornamental Street Lights for the Power 
System 

 
12. RES. NO. R-71-13 

A Resolution acquiring the services of P & G Power, LLC for the Power System 
 

13. RES. NO. R-72-13 
A Resolution authorizing the donation of 208 Fourth Street, Parcel No. N44-250339 to Habitat of 
Humanity of Miami County, Ohio 

 
 



 3

 
 

 PUBLIC COMMENT 
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION/WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP  
TUESDAY, JANUARY 15, 2013 

7:30 P.M. 
 

       Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street.  Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present were 
Commissioners Martin, Vogt, Terry, Wilson, and Washington Township Trustees McMaken, Hiegel, and 
Holfinger. Absent: None. 
 

JOINT MEETING WITH WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP TRUSTEES 
 

 Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of the minutes from the January 3, 2012 Joint Meeting of the Washington Township      
Trustees and Piqua City Commission. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt to approve the minutes of the Joint 
Meeting of the Washington Township Trustees and the Piqua City Commission.  Voice vote, Aye: 
Martin, Wilson, Terry, Vogt, Fess, Hiegel, McMaken, and Holfinger. Nay, None. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

     
       NEW BUSINESS 
 
       RES. NO. R-1-13 
 
       A Resolution reappointing a member to the Board of Trustees of Forest Hill Union Cemetery 
 

City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-1-13 reappoints Harlen Smoot to the Board of Trustee of 
Forest Hill Union Cemetery for a three year term to expire on December 31, 2015.   

 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Trustee Holfinger, that Resolution No, R-1-13 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Fess, Terry, Martin, Wilson, Vogt, Holfinger, McMaken, and Hiegel. Nay: 
None. Motion carried unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-1-13 adopted. 
 
Mayor Fess stated she has served with Mr. Smoot on the board, and he takes his position very 
seriously. Mayor Fess further stated she appreciates his work on the Board of Trustees of the Forest 
Hill Union Cemetery. 

 
Moved by Trustee.Hiegel, seconded by Commissioner Vogt to adjourn from the Joint Meeting with the 
Washington Township Trustees and the Piqua City Commission.  Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Martin, 
Terry, Fess, Wilson, Holfinger, Hiegel, and McMaken. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

         _________________________ 
         LUCINDA L. FESS. MAYOR 
         
       PASSED:   _________________________ 
 
       ATTEST:   _________________________ 
                        REBECCA J. COOL 
                        CLERK OF COMMISSION 



AMENDED 5-3-13 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-60-13 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE INTENTION  
TO LEVY A TAX IN EXCESS OF THE TEN MILL 
LIMITATION AND REQUESTING THE AUDITOR 
OF MIAMI COUNTY OHIO CERTIFICATION 
PURSUANT TO OHIO REVISED CODE SECTION 
5705.03 

 
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that the amount of taxes which may be raised within 
the ten mill limitation will be insufficient to provide an adequate amount for the 
necessary requirements of the Forest Hill Union Cemetery, and that it is necessary to 
levy a tax in excess of such limitation for the purpose of the operation and 
maintenance of the Forest Hill Union Cemetery pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 
Section 5705.19 (T) and that it is the intention to levy a tax in excess of said 
limitation; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio and by the Board of Trustees of Washington Township, 
Miami County, Ohio, a majority of all members elected thereto concurring that: 
 

SEC. 1: That said levy will be for the purpose of funding the operation 
and maintenance of the Forest Hill Union Cemetery as permitted by Section 5705.19 
(T) of the Ohio Revised Code, in a total rate and amount which is over and above the 
ten mill limitation and shall not exceed one half (0.50) mill for each one dollar ($1.00) 
of valuation which amounts to five cents ($0.05) for each one hundred dollars of 
valuation of which shall renew an existing levy for like purpose to be levied for a 
period of five (5) years, to be first placed upon the tax lists and duplicate for the tax 
year 2014, and continuing thereafter on the tax lists and duplicate for the tax years 
2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018, to be first collected in the calendar year 2015, and to 
be collected in the calendar years 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019, which proposed levy 
shall be a RENEWAL levy. 

  
SEC. 2: The Miami County, Ohio Auditor is hereby requested to certify 

to the Piqua City Commission, acting on behalf of the Forest Hill Cemetery Board, 
the total tax valuation of the property within said district, and the dollar amount of 
revenue that would be generated on an annual basis upon said valuation by the 
millage as set forth herein above, as required by the terms and provisions of Section 
5705.03 (B) of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 
SEC. 3: The Clerk of the Forest Hill Union Cemetery is hereby directed 

to certify a true and correct copy of this Resolution, and to forward the same to the 
Auditor of Miami County, Ohio and to request the Auditor of Miami County, Ohio to 
cause the certifications requested herein to be provided to this body as soon as 
practicable. 

 
 



 
 
 
 

 SEC. 4: This Resolution shall take effect immediately as authorized by 
Charter Section 12. 
 
      __________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   ____________________   
 
ATTEST:    ____________________   
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
      WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP TRUSTEES 
       
      ________________________________ 
       
      ________________________________ 
 
      ________________________________ 
 
      ________________________________ 
 
       



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday April 16, 2013 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Vice Mayor Vogt called the meeting to order.  Also 
present were Commissioners Martin, Terry, and Wilson.  Absent: Mayor Fess. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to excuse Mayor Fess and 
Commissioner Martin from the April 16, 2003 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting.   Voice 
vote, Aye:  Terry, Wilson, and Vogt.  Nay: None. 
 
Vice Mayor Vogt asked for a moment of silence in honor of the bombing victims at the Finish Line 
of the Boston Marathon on Monday April 15, 2013. 
 
PRESENTATION 
Ms. Cindy Bach, Solid Waste Coordinator for Miami County 
Topic-Miami County Solid Waste District Update 
 
Ms. Back gave a brief presentation on some of the programs, and outlined the events planned by 
Miami County in the near future.  There were several questions regarding fees involved with the 
disposal of electronics or any other household items. Ms. Back mentioned the need for recycling 
cell phones as they are given to the abuse shelter. Ms. Bach stated the solid waste program will 
be reviewed, and the disposal bids came in lower than expected and will reflect in a cost savings 
in both the transfer and tipping fees.  Residents are encouraged to visit the Miami County website 
at www.miamicountysed.com for more information. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
  Consent Agenda 

 
   Approval of the minutes from the April 2, 2013 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 

 
   RES. NO. R-50-13 
   A Resolution terminating the appointment of David Zimmerman to the Community Diversity 
   Committee 
 

Resolution No. R-50-13 terminates David Zimmerman as a member of the Community Diversity 
Committee as he no longer resides in the City of Piqua. 
 

    RES. NO. R-51-13 
    A Resolution terminating the appointment of David Zimmerman to the Energy Board 
     

Resolution No. R-51-13 terminates David Zimmerman as a member of the Energy Board as he no 
longer resides in the City of Piqua. 

 
    RES. NO. R-52-13 
    A Resolution terminating the appointment of David Zimmerman to the Stormwater Utility Board  
 

Resolution No. R-52-13 terminates David Zimmerman as a member of the Stormwater Utility Board 
as he no longer resides in the City of Piqua. 
 

    RES. NO. R-53-13 
    A Resolution appointing a member to the Tree Committee 
 

Resolution No. R-53-13 appoints Jesse Dotson as a member of the Tree Committee for a term to      
expire on March 17, 2017. 



 2

    RES. NO. R-54-13 
    A resolution appointing a member to the Community Diversity Committee 
 
    Resolution No. R-54-13 appoints Helen Cuff as a member of the Community Diversity Committee  
    for a term to expire on March 1, 2015. 
 
    Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson to approve the Consent  
    Agenda.  Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, and Terry.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
    unanimously.   

 
 New Business 

 
    RES. NO. R-55-13 

 
A Resolution retaining the service of HORAN to provide Health Insurance Consulting Services for 
the City of Piqua 
 
Human Resources Director Elaine Barton stated HORAN has worked with the city of Piqua for the 
past three years as the health insurance consultant.  The City extended the contract with HORAN 
for the third year by Resolution R-79-12 passed June 1, 2012. This also included an option for an 
additional three year period with the City.  Resolution No. R-55-13 would approve the extension for 
another three years with HORAN.  HORAN has negotiated lower health insurance premiums for the 
City for the past two years, and was successful in the negotiation of only a single digit increase for 
the 2013 plan year.  The City does not incur broker fees, as they are paid a flat fee rather than a 
percentage of the health insurance coverage. In the three years the City has worked with HORAN 
there has been an average of only a 5% increase, stated Ms. Barton.   
 
Erik Freudenberg and Julie Tople Account Representatives from HORAN were in attendance to 
answer questions.  Mr. Freudenberg provided a brief overview and answered questions regarding 
services, fees, and claims in the future, and how they will be processed.   
 
City Manager Huff stated that HORAN has done an outstanding job and is very professional, and 
has been very helpful in a lot of areas in providing cost savings to the City of Piqua. 
 
Mr. Freudenberg stated it is a pleasure to work with the City of Piqua, and the staff. 
 
Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-55-13 

 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-55-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Wilson, and Terry.   Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. Vice 
Mayor Vogt then declared Resolution No. R-55-13 adopted. 

 
     RES. NO. R-56-13 

 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Fanning Howey Engineering 
Group for the engineering design services for the North Main Street Streetscape project 
 
City Engineer Amy Havenar explained in October of 2010 the City Commission approved the 
submission of the N. Main Street Streetscape Project to the Miami Valley Regional Planning 
Commission for funding under the Transportation Enhancement (TE) program, and was selected for 
funding.  Request for Qualifications (RFQ’s) were sent out and Fanning Howey Engineering Group 
was selected to provide a Technical Proposal for the engineering design services.  The project 
limits are from Greene Street to the River Bridge on N. Main street and the project will consist of the 
removal and replacement of sidewalk, curbing, street signs, light poles, and installation of brick 
pavers, benches, trash receptacles and other streetscape amenities where right-of-way permits, 
stated Ms. Havenar.  



 3

Commissioners asked several questions regarding the location of the improvements, the type of 
materials to be used, along with the expected completion date for the project. 
 
Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-56-13 

 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-56-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Wilson, and Terry.   Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. Vice 
Mayor Vogt then declared Resolution No. R-56-13 adopted. 

 
    RES. NO. R-57-13 

 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with EMH&T for the Engineering 
Design Services for the Safe Routes to Scholl Improvements 
 
City Engineer Amy Havenar explained in May of 2012 the City was notified of the award of the Safe 
Routes to School (SRTS) grant for construction of infrastructure projects around the Piqua Junior 
High School site, Washington Intermediate School site, and the Wilder Intermediate School site.  
The proposed improvements for the Wilder site are also located along the designated walking route 
for the new school which will be located at the former Piqua Memorial Hospital site, and will be a 
benefit to both sites, stated Ms. Havenar. Requests for Qualifications (RFQ’s) were sent out and 
EMH&T was selected to provide the Technical Proposal for the engineering design services.  The 
grant application was submitted to cover 100% of the estimated costs.  However in reviewing a 
more detailed scope of the work with ODT and EMH&T, the amount of the design work will exceed 
the amount that originally submitted when applying for the grant and Ms. Havenar explained.  The 
103 Fund has the capacity to pay for the additional design fees not covered by the grant.   
 
There were several questions asked regarding the type of lights that will be used, the areas the 
work will be done in.  It was noted that after the design services are completed the final plans will 
come back before the City Commission for review and approval, stated City Manager Huff. 
 
Public Comment 

     
Joe Hinds, Colleen Drive, came forward and voiced his concern about the traffic at the corner of    
High and Downing Street with the YMCA daycare center located there, 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-57-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Vogt, and Wilson.   Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. Vice 
Mayor Vogt then declared Resolution No. R-57-13 adopted. 

 
    RES. NO. R-58-13 
 

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to file an application to the Local Government Innovation    
Fund for the funding of a Feasibility Study for a Shared Service Facility 
 
City Manager Huff explained in 2012 the State of Ohio introduced the Local Government Innovation 
Fund, which provides loans and grants to local governments to encourage collaborative effort and 
to pursue innovative practices.  After several internal discussions it was determined that the 
program would be an appropriate use of funds to request a grant for a feasibility study for a shared 
service facility. The facility would be used to share a fleet management and repair facility with other 
local government agencies which include Piqua City School District, Ohio Department of 
Transportation-District VII, Miami East Local School District, and the Covington Exempted Village 
School District.  The funding would pay for the feasibility study to determine if cost savings can be 
had from all participants by having shared fleet management services. 
 
 



 4

Commissioner Terry asked if City Manager Huff would explain who ODOT District V11 is and what 
their role will be in this combined program.  City Manager Huff gave a brief overview of ODOT. 
It was noted that the study is being completely paid for by the State. 
 
Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-58-13 

 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-58-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Terry, and Wilson.   Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. Vice 
Mayor Vogt then declared Resolution No. R-58-13 adopted. 

     
     RES. NO. R-59-13 

 
A Resolution objecting to the renewal of Liquor Permit #5520104 held by Maradi Petroleum, LLC , 

DBA Piqua Marathon LLC. 1130 Park Avenue, Piqua, Ohio 
 

Law Director Stacy Wall explained the Piqua Police Department has had significant contact with   
Buckeye Chuck’s at 1130 Park Avenue resulting in multiple court cases and a drain on City 
resources that affect the community as a whole. Resolution No. R-59-13 is a resolution objecting to 
the renewal of Liquor Permit #5520104 held by Maradi Petroleum LLC DBA Piqua Marathon LLC. 
1130 Park Avenue, Piqua, Ohio for all of the statutory reasons provided in Ohio Revised Code 
Section 4303.292(A) specifically, (1) (t).  This will not close the establishment down, this is objecting 
to the renewal of their liquor license.  A hearing is being requested by the City to voice their 
concerns to the Liquor Control Board, and the Liquor Board will make the final determination as to 
the renewal of the liquor license. 

 
Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-59-13 

 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-59-13 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye:  Wilson, Vogt, and Terry.   Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. Vice 
Mayor Vogt then declared Resolution No. R-59-13 adopted. 

 
 PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide     
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions 
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office. 
 
No one came forward to speak at this time. 

 
      OTHER 

 
Monthly Reports for February were noted and received. 
 

      City Manager’s Report 
    

City Manager Huff stated the City will kick off the ASTR Grant which is the Agency for Toxic      
Substance and Disease Registry.  This will involve the Center for Disease Control, the National 
Brownfields Association, and the Consultant for this project Burgess and Niple. This is a $138,000 
grant, and the City of Piqua is the first municipality in the nation to receive this type of grant. 

 
City Manager Huff announced the Development Department has scheduled a work session to be 
held in the Commission Chambers on Monday, April 22, 2013 at 7:00 P.M. to discuss the future 
location of a new Dog Park in the City of Piqua. 
 



 5

City Manager announced the Arbor Day Celebration will be held at French Park on Monday, April 
29, 2013 at 10:00 A.M. with the rain date of May 6, 2013. 
 
City Manager Huff congratulated Power Systems Director Ed Krieger on being selected as the 
American Public Power Association recepitant of the Robert E. Roundtree Rising Star Award.  
This award is given to individuals who are recognized by their peers as future leaders of the Public 
Power System. The award will be presented at the National APPA Conference in Nashville, 
Tennessee in June. 
 

      Commissioners Comment 
 
Vice Mayor Vogt stated he wanted to speak on behalf of the Friends of the Parks who are working 
very hard on plans for improvements to Pitsenbarger Park.  Plans include a statute of William H. 
Pitsenbarger, Splash Pad, and new signage.  Vice Mayor encouraged citizens to support the 
efforts of the Friends of the Parks, further stating the donations are tax deductible. 

 
Vice Mayor Vogt announced all of the proceeds from the City of Piqua Car Show in July will go the 
Pitsenbarger Sports Complex renovations this year. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated the Friends of the Parks fund raising committee have put a lot of 
effort in fundraising for the various new projects at Pitsenbarger Sports Complex.  Commissioner 
Wilson reminded citizens that their pledges are tax deductible, and encourage citizens to send in 
their pledges. The new Splash Pad will be a great improvement to the Municipal Pool as 
attendance has been down the last year.  The Splash Pad will help to raise the attendance and 
bring people back to the municipal pool.  Commissioner Wilson thanked the Friends of the Parks 
committee members for all of their hard work and dedication to these worthwhile projects. 

 
Commissioner Terry stated there have been a couple of Ribbon Cuttings recently including the 
new Buffalo Rings and Wings, and the Heartland Credit Union.  Commissioner Terry thanked both 
of them for investing their money in Piqua, and asked citizens to support them. 
 
Commissioner Terry reminded citizens to pick up trash when they see it in their yards and in their 
neighborhoods.  The planters in the downtown area are also being used for trash, and 
Commissioner Terry asked that trash not be placed in them as it damages the soil for the flowers 
that are going to be planted soon. Also when walking by St. James Church Commissioner Terry 
noticed a pile of cigarette butts that had been dumped out by the bump out, and asked citizens to 
please refrain from dumping their trash out on the public streets. 
 
Vice Mayor Vote reminded citizens not to blow their grass into the gutters when mowing, but to 
blow it back into their yards as this clogs up the sewer. 
 
It was stated that the Executive Session would not be held due to the absence of two of the 
Commission Members at this time. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to adjourn from the Regular 
Piqua City Commission Meeting at 8:20 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Wilson, and Vogt. Nay: 
None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
                  
       ______________________________ 
       WILLIAM D. VOGT, VICE MAYOR 
  
PASSED: ______________________   
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
         REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 



                                       RESOLUTION NO. R-61-13 
 

   A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                       TO THE COMMUNITY DIVERSITY COMMITTEE 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Doug Smith is hereby appointed as a member of the 
Community Diversity Committee for a term to expire on March 1, 2014 or until his 
successor is confirmed and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



RESOLUTION NO. R-62-13 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PRELIMINARY 
LEGISLATION WITH THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION (ODOT) FOR THE SPOT 
PAVING AND RESURFACING OF I-75 FROM 
STRAIGHT LINE MILEAGE 14.15 TO STRAIGHT 
LINE MILEAGE 19.95 
 

 WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation requests preliminary 
legislation to complete the programming on a project proposing spot paving and 
resurfacing on I-75 within the City of Piqua. 
 

SEC. 1:  Project Description 
WHEREAS, the State has identified the need for the described project: 

 
To do spot paving and resurfacing to repair damaged pavement from the 

winter season in the City of Piqua from Straight Line Mileage 14.15 to Straight Line 
Mileage 19.95, in the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio.  Said project is further 
identified as MIA/SHE IR 75 14.15/0.00. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC.2:  Consent Statement 
 Being in the public interest, the City of Piqua (CITY) gives consent to the 
Director of Transportation to complete the above-described project. 
 
 SEC. 3:  Cooperation Statement 
 The CITY shall cooperate with the Director of Transportation in the above-
described project as follows: 
 
 The CITY has no obligation for costs for the project as described in Section I. 
ODOT will provide all Federal-aid and State funds set aside by the Director of 
Transportation for the financing of this improvement from funds allocated by the 
Federal Highway Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation.  
 

In addition, the CITY also agrees to pay One-Hundred percent (100%) of 
those features requested by the CITY which are determined by the State and 
Federal Highway Administration to be unnecessary for the Project.   

 
If curb ramps are constructed by ODOT in compliance with the Americans 

with Disabilities Act, future maintenance of installed sidewalk curb ramps shall be the 
responsibility of the CITY. The CITY shall adjust any existing castings, as required, 
with CITY forces. 

 
 SEC. 4:  Utilities and Right-Of-Way Statement 
 The CITY agrees that all right-of-way (if applicable) required for the described 
project will be acquired and/or made available in accordance with current State and 



Federal regulations.  The CITY also understands that right-of-way costs include 
eligible utility costs.   
 The CITY agrees that all utility accommodation, relocation and 
reimbursement will comply with the current provisions of 23 CFR 645 and the ODOT 
Utilities Manual. 
 
 SEC. 5:  Maintenance 
 Upon completion of the Project, and unless otherwise agreed, the CITY shall: 
(1) provide adequate maintenance for the Project in accordance with all applicable 
state and federal law, including, but not limited to, Title 23, U.S.C. Section 116; (2) 
provide ample financial provisions, as necessary, for such maintenance of the 
Project; (3) maintain the right-of-way, keeping it free of obstructions; and (4) hold 
said right-of-way inviolate for public highway purposes. 
 
 SEC. 6: Authority to Sign 
 The City Manager of the City of Piqua is hereby empowered on behalf of the 
City of Piqua to enter into agreements with the Director of Transportation necessary 
to complete the above-described project.  
  
 SEC. 7: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
     
 

____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



RESOLUTION NO. R-63-13 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO  
VALLEY FORD TRUCK, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE OF AN 

F-450 DUMP TRUCK 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Underground Utilities Department requires the purchase of dump truck for  
fulfilling their daily work orders efficiently and effectively throughout the City of Piqua; and 
 
 WHEREAS, purchase will be made using State Bid Contract #GDC -093, item # 38AT, and 
our quote for our exact specifications in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to Valley Ford Truck, Inc. in the 
amount of $44,972.00. 
 

SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is hereby 
authorized to draw her warrant on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment for said 
services rendered. 

 
SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 

period allowed by law. 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 4
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
Tuesday, May 7, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO  
VALLEY FORD TRUCK, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE OF AN F-
450 DUMP TRUCK 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  Todd Brandenburg, Underground Utilities Superintendent 
Department: Underground Utilities Department 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
This purchase will increase the effectiveness and efficiency of the Underground 
Utilities Department field operations in water distribution, wastewater 
collection, and stormwater maintenance. The versatility of this truck will allow 
for crews to use it as a flat-bed truck for material handling along with utilizing it 
as a dump truck. The decision to move forward with a 1-ton dump truck was 
made due to the amount of work that is performed by crews in tight areas and in 
and near traffic.  

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  In total $45,000 is budgeted for 2013 
Expenditure $:  $44,972  
Source of Funds: 403-000-190-3392; 404-000-190-3392; 411-000-190-3392 
Narrative:  Underground Utilities is supported by the budgets for 

Water, Wastewater and Stormwater. 
 

OPTIONS 
(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

 
 

1. Approve Resolution R-6-13 authorizing the purchase of this dump truck. 
2. Do not approve the Resolution.  Our department would be much less 

efficient and effective continuing to use the older truck we have now.   

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
The delivery of the truck should be within 4 months of our order. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
It is the staff recommendation to approve this Resolution to purchase the 
aforementioned truck to increase Underground’s effectiveness in carrying out 
daily operational tasks with versatile pieces of equipment such as this. 
 

ATTACHMENTS  State Bid Pricing Sheet for Item 38AT and our Quote from Valley Ford. 

 











 RESOLUTION NO. R- 64 -13 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE APPLICATION FOR PLACEMENT OF 
FARMLAND IN AN AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT FILED BY DONALD E. APPLE 

FOR PARCEL N44-076917 IN THE CITY OF PIQUA 
 

 WHEREAS, Donald E. Apple has submitted an application to designate 
parcel N44-076917 as an agricultural use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, parcel N44-076917 is devoted exclusively for agricultural use; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the placement of this property in an agricultural use district 
will not adversely impact the City of Piqua’s development needs; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution was adopted at an advertised public meeting, 

which also served as a public hearing on the application for the identified parcels 
herein; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The application to place parcel N44-076917 in an agricultural 
use district as provided by Ohio Revised Codes Section 929.02 is hereby 
approved; 

  
SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 

after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                  CLERK OF COMMISSION





RESOLUTION NO. R-65-13 
 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING FINAL LEGISLATION 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE OHIO 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE CR 
25-A PHASE II RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

 WHEREAS, on the 2nd day of November, 2009, the LPA enacted legislation proposing 
cooperation with the Director of Transportation for the described project: 

The project consists of the widening of the roadway from two to four lanes, 
creating an urban cross section with curbs and gutters with sidewalks on both 
sides, lying within the City of Piqua; and  

 WHEREAS, the LPA shall cooperate with the Director of Transportation in the 
above described project as follows:  

The City agrees to assume and bear one hundred percent (100%) of the entire 
cost of the improvement, less the amount of Federal-aid MVRPC funds set aside 
by the Director of Transportation for the financing of this improvement from 
funds allocated by the Federal Highway Administration, U.S. 
Department of Transportation 

Also, the City agrees to assume and bear the entire cost and expense of the 
installation and/or repair of curb ramps which are necessary to ensure 
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.   

The share of the cost of the LPA is now estimated in the amount of Four Hundred Fifteen 
Thousand and - - 00/100 Dollars ($415,000.00) which includes a 10% contingency, but 
said estimated amount is to be adjusted in order that the LPA's ultimate share of said improvement 
shall correspond with said percentages of actual costs when said actual costs are determined; and 

 WHEREAS, The Director of Transportation has approved said legislation proposing 
cooperation and has caused to be made plans and specifications and an estimate of cost 
and expense for improving the above described highway and has transmitted copies of 
the same to this legislative authority; and  

 WHEREAS, The LPA desires the Director of Transportation to proceed with the 
aforesaid highway improvement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved:  

 SEC. 1: That the sum of Four Hundred Fifteen Thousand and - - 00/100 Dollars 
($415,000.00) is hereby appropriated for the improvement described above and the fiscal 
officer is hereby authorized and directed to issue an order on the treasurer for said sum upon 
the requisition of the Director of Transportation to pay the cost and expense of said 
improvement. We hereby agree to assume in the first instance, the share of the cost and 



expense over and above the amount to be paid from Federal funds as agreed upon and 
approved in Resolution R-100-09.  Said appropriated amount shall cover the estimated cost 
and any contingency for the actual dollar amount of the Project, which will be based upon 
advertised bids received. 

 SEC. 2: That the LPA hereby requests the Director of Transportation to proceed 
with the aforesaid highway improvement.  

 SEC. 3: That the LPA enter into a contract with the State, and that the City 
Manager be, and is hereby authorized to execute said contract, providing for the payment of 
the LPA the sum of money set forth herein above for improving the described project. 

 
 SEC. 4: That the LPA transmit to the Director of Transportation a fully executed 
copy of this Resolution.  
 
This is to certify that we have compared the foregoing copy of Resolution with the original 
record thereof, found in the record of the proceedings of the LPA, and which Resolution was 
duly passed by the LPA on the 2nd day of November, 2009, and that the same is a true and 
correct copy of the record of said Resolution and the action of said LPA thereon. 
 
 SEC. 5: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 



 

Item # 6
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE May 7, 2013 
 

REPORT TITLE 
(Should match resolution/ordinance 

title) 

A resolution requesting final legislation to enter into an agreement with the 
Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) for the CR 25-A Phase II 
Reconstruction Project.   

 
SUBMITTED BY Name & Title: Amy Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 

Department:  Engineering 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

On November 2, 2009, City Commission passed a resolution authorizing the 
City Manager to enter into a preliminary agreement with ODOT for the CR 25-
A Phase II Reconstruction Project.  The City then engaged consultants to begin 
the detailed design, the environmental documents, and the right-of-way 
acquisition.  

The CR 25-A Phase II Reconstruction Project will consist of the reconstruction 
of CR 25-A from Country Club Road to Looney Road and will include new 
granular base, asphalt pavement, concrete curb & gutter, sidewalks and the 
installation of new storm sewer.  Project also includes the adjustment of existing 
utilities where necessary.        

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  $3.4 million 

Expenditure $:  $3.4 million 
Source of Funds: Local  (103 Fund, Water Fund, Wastewater Fund & Storm 

Water Fund) 

This project is a joint project between the City of Piqua 
and Miami County; therefore, all local costs incurred will 
be split 50/50.      

Narrative  The City has received funding from the Federal Highway 
Administration through the Miami Valley Regional 
Planning Commission in the amount of $2,046,000 for 
this project.  We have also received $950,000 from the 
Ohio Public Works Commission.   

While the bids are not in yet for this project, the estimated 
construction cost at this time is approximately $3.4 
million.  Therefore, the estimated local portion of the 



project is approximately $415,000 (includes 10% 
contingency) will be split with Miami County.  If the 
actual bids come in higher, the local portion will increase.  
If the bids come in lower than the estimate, the local 
portion will decrease.  Bids are due in on May 23, 2013. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 

1. Approve the resolution to enter into an agreement with ODOT.   

2. Deny the resolution, return the money, and do not proceed with the project. 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
The construction is scheduled to begin in July of 2013 with completion the fall 
of 2014.         

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approval of the Resolution to enter into an agreement with ODOT to allow for 
the CR 25-A Phase II Reconstruction Project to proceed.    

ATTACHMENTS  Contract (Exhibit A) 

 















RESOLUTION NO. R-66-13 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO THE LPA FEDERAL 
LOCAL-LET PROJECT AGREEMENT WITH THE 
OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
(ODOT) FOR THE CR 25-A RESURFACING 
PROJECT    

 
 WHEREAS, the National Transportation Act has made available certain 
Federal funding for use by local public agencies; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has been awarded a portion of this funding 
through the Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission for the resurfacing of CR 
25-A from south of Statler Avenue to Riverside Drive; and      
 

WHEREAS, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) designated ODOT 
as the agency in Ohio to administer FHWA’s Federal funding programs;  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua and ODOT desire to enter into a Local Let 

Project Agreement regarding the MIA-CR25A-14.87, PID 95643 Project; substantially 
in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that:  

 
SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the MIA-

CR25A-14.87 LPA Federal Local-Let Project Agreement substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and all documents, instruments and agreements 
contemplated thereby and to execute such amendments to the MIA-CR25A-14.87 
LPA Federal Local-Let Project Agreement from time to time as contemplated by such 
Agreement. 

 
SEC 2:   This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law. 
      

____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 7
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
May 7, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into the LPA Federal 
Local-Let Project Agreement with the Ohio Department of Transportation 
(ODOT) for the CR 25-A Resurfacing Project  

 
SUBMITTED BY Name & Title: Amy Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 

Department:  Engineering 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

In October of 2012, City Commission approved the submission of the CR 25-A 
Resurfacing Project to the Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission for 
funding under the Surface Transportation Program (STP) Resurfacing Program.  
This project was selected for funding and this resolution would allow us to 
begin the plan development process. 

This project is being programmed as a Local-Let project which means the plan 
development, the project bidding, and the construction inspection will be 
performed in-house, rather than having to hire a consultant to complete this 
work.       

The project limits are from south of Statler Avenue to Riverside Drive on CR 
25-A.  The project will consist of milling and overlaying of the roadway with a 
new asphalt surface, the replacement of broken down catch basins within the 
roadway, the installation of ADA compliant handicap ramps at all of the 
intersections within the paving limits, and the placement of new pavement 
markings within the project limits. 

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  N/A for this Legislation 

Expenditure $:  N/A for this Legislation 
Source of Funds:  

Narrative  At this time, the total cost for the project is estimated to be 
$782,920.  ODOT will provide to the City of Piqua 75% of 
the eligible costs, up to a maximum of $583,440 in Federal 
funds.     

 1. Approve the resolution to enter into an agreement with ODOT.   



OPTIONS 
(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

 

2. Deny the resolution, return the funding, and do not proceed with the 
project. 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
The project will be bid early 2014 with the resurfacing scheduled to begin in the 
spring of 2014.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve the resolution to allow for the City to enter into an agreement with 
ODOT for the CR 25-A Resurfacing Project.     

ATTACHMENTS  LPA Federal Local-Let Project Agreement (Exhibit A) 

 

































RESOLUTION  NO. R-67-13 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH AMENDMENT 
WITH EVANS LANDSCAPING, INC. FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION AND DEMOLITION OF THE 
PIQUA MEMORIAL MEDICAL CENTER SITE AT A COST NOT TO EXCEED $1,753,996 AND AUTHORIZING 

EVANS LANDSCAPING, INC. TO PROCEED WITH THE PROJECT 

WHEREAS, on August 5, 2011, this City of Piqua received a Clean Ohio Revitalization Fund for the 
environmental remediation and demolition of the Piqua Hospital Site from the Ohio Department of Development; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua competitively procured proposals from qualified firms to perform the 
remediation and demolition of the former Piqua Memorial Medical Center; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has retained the firm of Burgess and Niple, Inc. to review all submitted proposals; and 

WHEREAS, it was determined by Burgess and Niple, Inc. that Evans Landscaping, Inc. of Cincinnati, Ohio was the 
lowest and most responsive bid for the project; and 

WHEREAS, through Resolution No. R-30-12, adopted on February 21, 2012, the City Commission of the City of 
Piqua authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract with Evans Landscaping, Inc. for the environmental remediation 
and demolition of the Piqua Memorial Medical Center; and 

WHEREAS, through Resolution No. R-162-12, adopted December 18, 2012, the City Commission of the City of 
Piqua authorized the City Manager to enter into an amended agreement with Evans Landscaping, Inc. for the environmental 
remediation and demolition of the Piqua Memorial Medical Center; and, 

WHEREAS, Burgess and Niple, Inc. and Evans Landscaping, Inc. have found and agreed upon one change orders 
that need to be completed for the complete environmental remediation and   demolition of the Piqua Memorial Medical 
Center. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the 
majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that 

 SEC. 1:  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into all necessary contract amendments with 
Evans Landscaping, Inc.. for the demolition and remediation of the former Piqua Memorial Medical Center site in 
accordance with the Clean Ohio Revitalization Fund Grant Agreement between the Ohio Department of Development and 
the City of Piqua; 

 SEC. 2:  The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding 
a total of $1,753,996; 

 SEC. 3:  The firm of Evans Landscaping, Inc. is authorized to proceed with all necessary steps to 
proceed with the amendments. 

 SEC. 4:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by 
law. 

 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   ______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item #8 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
May 7, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Amend the Contract with Evans 
Landscaping, Inc. for the Abatement and Demolition of the Piqua Memorial 
Medical Center at an Amount Not to Exceed $1,753,996 and Authorizing Evans 
Landscaping, Inc. to Proceed with the Project. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
Department: Development 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
X  Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X  City Manager    Asst. City Manager/Finance 
X  Asst. City Manager/Development    Law Director 
X  Department Director;     Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
On February 21, 2012, the City Commission authorized through Resolution #R-
30-12 a $1.789 million contract with Evans Landscaping to perform 
environmental remediation and demolition on the site of the former Piqua 
Memorial Medical Center.   
 
A second resolution (Resolution #R-162-12) was adopted by the City Commission 
on December 18, 2012, which reduced the Evans contract since there were four 
changes to the scope of work that were made.  These changes included: 
 

1. The removal of hazardous materials and destruction of a sump found in 
the boiler house portion of the property (Additional Cost of $1,898) 

2. The removal of a 24” air duct wrapped, approximately 60 feet in 
length, in asbestos containing material (Additional Cost of $9,884) 

3. Amending the contract to deduct required engineering controls to protect 
the Nicklin Medical Building (Contract Deduction of $1,654) 

4. Amending the contract to deduct final seeding, grading and other site 
work, at request of Piqua City Schools (Contract Deduction of $30,392) 

 
Burgess and Niple, Inc. has informed the City of Piqua that the scope of work line 
item for Soil Abatement can be revised downward since the task is finished, fully 
billed and there is excess funds in that line item.  With that, it has been 
requested that the Evans Landscape contract be reduced from $1,768,736 to 
$1,753,996; a reduction of $14,740.00. 
 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $1,789,000 
Expenditure $:  $1,753,996 
Source of Funds:  Clean Ohio Revitalization Fund Grant awarded in August 

2011. 



Narrative:  The funding for this project comes from the Clean Ohio 
Revitalization Grant.  There is no cost to the city for this 
project, other than the indirect costs associated with staff 
time devoted to the project. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the contract amendment with Evans Landscaping. 
2. Deny the amendment with Evans Landscaping and risk having the project 

stopped. 
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

Upon adoption of this amendment, Burgess and Niple is prepared to undertake 
the necessary work associated with the amendment.   The remediation and 
demolition of the property is complete.  There is minor site work that needs to be 
completed and the No Further Action letter is nearly complete.  The property 
transfer is expected to take place by May 30. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff recommends that the City Commission adopt the amendment.   

ATTACHMENTS   

 



RESOLUTION  NO. R-68-13 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH AMENDMENT 
WITH BURGESS AND NIPLE, INC.FOR THE MANAGEMENT, OVERSIGHT AND PREPARATION OF THE 
NO FURTHER ACTION LETTER FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION AND DEMOLITION OF THE 

PIQUA MEMORIAL MEDICAL CENTER SITE AT A COST NOT TO EXCEED $257,819.56 AND 
AUTHORIZING BURGESS AND NIPLE, INC. TO PROCEED WITH THE PROJECT 

WHEREAS, on August 5, 2011, this City of Piqua received a Clean Ohio Revitalization Fund for the 
environmental remediation and demolition of the Piqua Hospital Site from the Ohio Department of Development; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua competitively procured statement of qualifications from qualified 
firms to perform the management of the remediation and demolition of the former Piqua Memorial Medical 
Center; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua reviewed all submitted proposals; and 

WHEREAS, it was determined by Burgess and Niple, Inc. that Burgess and Niple, Inc.. of Cincinnati, Ohio was 
the most qualified firm for the project; and 

WHEREAS, through Resolution No. R-118-11, adopted on September 20, 2011, the City Commission of the 
City of Piqua authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract with Burgess and Niple, Inc. to manage the 
environmental remediation and demolition of the Piqua Memorial Medical Center; and 

WHEREAS, through Resolution No. R-161-12, adopted on December 18, 2012, the City Commission of the 
City of Piqua authorized the City Manager to enter into an amended agreement with Burgess and Niple, Inc., increasing 
the authorized amount,  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 
the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that 

 SEC. 1:  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into all necessary contract amendments 
with Burgess and Niple, Inc. for the management of the demolition and remediation of the former Piqua Memorial 
Medical Center site in accordance with the Clean Ohio Revitalization Fund Grant Agreement between the Ohio 
Department of Development and the City of Piqua; 

 SEC. 2:  The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is hereby authorized to draw 
her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not 
exceeding a total of $257,819.56; 

 SEC. 3:  The firm of Burgess and Niple, Inc.. is authorized to proceed with all necessary steps to 
proceed with the amendments. 

 SEC. 4:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed 
by law. 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   ______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item #9 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
May 7, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Amend the Contract with Burgess 
and Niple, Inc. for the project management of the Abatement and Demolition of 
the Piqua Memorial Medical Center at an Amount Not to Exceed $257,819.56 
and Authorizing Burgess and Niple, Inc. to Proceed with the Project. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
Department: Development 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
X  Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X  City Manager    Asst. City Manager/Finance 
X  Asst. City Manager/Development    Law Director 
X  Department Director;     Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
On September 20, 2011, the City Commission authorized through Resolution #R-
118-11 a $197,100 contract with Burgess and Niple to manage the 
environmental remediation and demolition on the site of the former Piqua 
Memorial Medical Center in accordance with the procedures put forward by the 
Ohio Environmental Protection Agency and the Ohio Development Services 
Agency and the Clean Ohio Council. 
 
On December 18, 2012, the City Commission adopted Resolution #R-161-12, 
which increased the amount of the contract to $231,154.  The necessity for the 
additional cost was to meet the following needs brought forward by Burgess and 
Niple: 
 

1. The bidding process was delayed due to circumstances beyond the 
control of the city, or Burgess and Niple.  These delays included the 
withdrawal of the apparent low bidder, the disqualification of the 
second lowest bidder due to mathematical errors in their bid, delays on 
receiving final contract documents to the winning bidder. 

2. The project deadline was extended an additional seventy-five days due 
to the winning contractor providing finalized contracts to the City and 
Burgess and Niple. 

3. Unanticipated meetings with the Piqua City Schools to deal with issues 
brought forward by the Ohio Schools Facility Commission. 

 
In recent communication, Burgess and Niple has requested additional funding of 
$26,667.56 to bring their contract to $257,819.56.  Burgess and Niple, Inc. 
claims that throughout December and January they have worked hard to meet 
both the needs of the City of Piqua (current owner) and the Piqua City School 
District (future owner).  The additional work performed by Burgess and Niple 
included coordinating with the Clean Ohio Program to facilitate an early 
transfer of the property, the preparation of a two-party No Further Action letter 



required by the Clean Ohio Program and revising the scope of work to meet the 
school district’s needs.  The Piqua City School District claimed that their ownership 
of the property was paramount in their ability to move with their construction 
projection.  After much work from Burgess and Niple, Inc., the City was able to 
provide a proposal to transfer the property before the end of the project to 
facilitate the district’s needs; the district refused the offer.  
 
This request will be funded through the balance of the Clean Ohio Revitalization 
Fund grant that was received by the City of Piqua in August 2011 and 
additional funds received by the Upper Valley Medical Center for the project. 
 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $257,819.56 
Expenditure $:  $257,819.56 
Source of Funds:  Clean Ohio Revitalization Fund Grant awarded in August 

2011. 
Narrative:  The funding for this project comes from the Clean Ohio 

Revitalization Grant.  There is no cost to the city for this 
project, other than the indirect costs associated with staff 
time devoted to the project. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the contract amendment with Burgess and Niple, Inc.. 
2. Deny the amendment with Burgess and Niple, Inc. and risk having the 

project stopped. 
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

Upon adoption of this amendment, Burgess and Niple is prepared to undertake 
the necessary work associated with the amendment.   The remediation and 
demolition of the property is complete.  There is minor site work that needs to be 
completed and the No Further Action letter is nearly complete.  The property 
transfer is expected to take place by May 30.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff recommends that the City Commission adopt the amendment.   

ATTACHMENTS   

 



RESOLUTION NO. R-69-13 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH DLZ 

FOR AN ENGINEERING EVALUATION OF THE 
HYDRAULIC CANAL LEVEE, PREPARING AND 

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE AND 
INSPECTIONS (OM&I) MANUAL FOR 

HYDRAULIC CANAL LEVEE, AND EMERGENCY 
ACTION PLANS (EAP) FOR ECHO LAKE AND 

FRANZ POND 
 

 WHEREAS, The City of Piqua acknowledges the need for the levee 
systems to be evaluated within the city; and 

 WHEREAS, the services from DLZ will include an engineering evaluation 
of the hydraulic canal levee, preparing a OM&I manual for the hydraulic canal 
levee and EAP plans for Echo Lake and Franz Pond; and 

WHEREAS, after solicitation of Request for Qualifications, DLZ has been 
determined to be the most qualified provider of these services; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that 

 SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to DLZ for the levee 
evaluation, OM&I manual and EAP’s for Echo Lake and Franz Pond; 

 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate 
account of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not 
exceeding a total of $148,262; 

 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 10
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
May 7, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an Agreement with DLZ for 
an engineering evaluation of the Hydraulic Canal Levee, preparing an 
Operations, Maintenance and Inspection (OM&I) manual for Hydraulic Canal 
Levee, Emergency Action Plan (EAP) for Echo Lake and Franz Pond. 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Don Freisthler, Water Plant Superintendent 
Department: Water Department 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
During 2012, a very persistent leak was noticed at Forest Hill Cemetery.  The 
leak took months to pin point and repair.  We were also aware of several very 
deep sink holes in the Fountain Park area.  This made it very apparent that an 
evaluation of the 1868 hydraulic system levee was needed.  
 
The City Manager requested us to get a Request for Qualifications (RFQ’s) for a 
levee evaluation.  DLZ Engineers was selected from three firms, to provide a 
Technical Proposal & Scope of Services for this project. 
 
The project includes an evaluation of the Hydraulic Levee development of an 
OM&I manual, EAP for Frantz Pond and Echo Lake.   

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $95,000.00 Hydraulic evaluation 
$25,000.00 EAP Frantz and Echo 
$14,784.00 Historical  
$13,478.00 Contingency (10%) 

Expenditure $:  $148,262.00  not to exceed 
Source of Funds: 403-302-601-7553 
Narrative:  The City desires to determine the stability of the entire levee 

embankment system; this does not cover the spillways at 
this time.  
 
The need for an OM&I manual, was identified in the (2007) 
ODNR inspection report 
 
EAP’s for the Frantz Pond and Echo Lake, was also 
identified in the (2007) ODNR inspection report. 



 
All three of these items were also covered by the Aegis 
Insurance Group inspector. They also want to see this 
evaluation completed as they are the excess liability 
insurance provider for the City. 
 
The evaluation will provide the necessary information to 
figure the costs involved to have the levee compliant with 
the Ohio Department of Natural Resources (ODNR) and 
Ohio EPA. 
 
DLZ has done similar projects for the Miami Conservancy 
District, City of West Carrolton and ODNR.  Phone 
interviews were conducted with all three entities.  I received 
very positive feedback on DLZ’s ability to handle this type 
of projects 
 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the resolution to enter into an agreement with DLZ, for the levee 
evaluation, OM&I manual and EAP’s for Echo and Frantz 
 
This will allow us to prioritize the necessary repairs and budget for this 
cost.  

• EAP’s will allow us to better protect the safety of Piqua’s citizens 
• OM&I manuals document our inspections, allowing us to find 

possible problems earlier 
2. Don’t approve and accept all liability for any possible failures. 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

Work would commence upon receipt of a written notice to proceed and 
purchase order.  Approximately six months for completion. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Approve the resolution and allow work to proceed on the, 
Engineering Evaluation Of The Hydraulic Canal Levee, OM&I 
Manual, EAP’s for Frantz pond and Echo Lake  

ATTACHMENTS  1. DLZ Scope of Service, ODNR 2007 inspection report 

 











































































RESOLUTION NO. R-70-13 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
FOR THE PURCHASE OF ORNAMENTAL 

STREET LIGHTS FOR THE POWER SYSTEM 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the present operations of the City require the purchase of 
ornamental street lights for the Power System; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the 
tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: Contract with All-Phase Electric Supply Co. for the purchase of 
twenty-seven (27) ornamental street lights are hereby approved as the lowest, 
responsible bidders for said project and the City Manager is hereby authorized to 
execute a contract with said bidder pursuant to contract specifications;  
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account 
of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of 
$176,913.50. 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
          LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 
 

 

 
AG

 

 

 

ME

RE

SU

GENDA CLA

APPROVA

BA

BUD
FINAN

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN

DGETING AN
CIAL IMPAC

 

 
E May 7, 2

E 
 
 

A RE
O

Y Name &

Departm

N  

Conse

S City M

Asst. 

Depar
 

D 
 
 

 

The US
ornamen
(IFB) fo
six vend
holder, a
In addit
which w
from All

 

D 
T 

 

Budgete

Expendi

Source o

Narrativ

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

2013 

ESOLUTION
ORNAMENT

& Title:  Nick

ment: Power 

ent 

Manager 

City Manag

rtment Direc

S 36 Beaut
ntal streetlig
r ornamenta

dors on Apri
and a weathe
ion, the pow

will bring the
l-Phase Elec

d $:  $

ture $:  $

of Funds: 1

ve:  I
c
p
w

mmissi
ff Repo

N AWARDING
TAL STREE

k Berger, As

System 

 

Ordinanc

ger/Developm

ctor;  

tification pr
ghts.  Piqua 
al street light
l 16, 2013.  

erproof recep
wer system 

e total up to t
ctric Supply 

$320,000 

$176,913.50

190-3373 

Included in t
complete the
project. The 
will have a n

ion Ag
ort 

G A CONTR
ET LIGHTS F

st. Power Sy

ce 
 

ment 

roject requi
Power Sys

ts on March
Each pole w

ptacle.   Mor
is purchasi

twenty-seve
Company to

0 

the 2013 Pow
e electric por
contract to A

not to exceed

genda  

RACT FOR T
FOR THE PO

ystem Direct

Resolution 

Asst. City M

Law Directo

Other:  Ene

ires the ins
stem release
h 19, 2013.  B
will have 4 
re details of 
ing a spare 
n (27).  The

otaling $176,

wer System 
rtion of the U
All-Phase E
d price of $1

Item 

          

THE PURCH
OWER SYS

tor 

 

Re

Manager/Fin

or 

rgy Board 

stallation of
ed an Invita
Bids were re
banner arms

f these poles 
ornamental

 lowest bid w
,913.50 

budget is $3
US 36 Beaut
lectric Supp

176,913.50 

# 11

 

HASE OF 
TEM 

gular 

nance 

f twenty-six
ation for Bid
eceived from
s, a flag pole
are attached
l street ligh
was received

320,000 to 
tification 

ply Company

x 
d 

m 
e 

d.  
ht 
d 

y 



 
OPTIONS 

 
 

1. Approve Resolution No. R-70-13 awarding All-Phase Electric Supply Co. 
a contract for the purchase of twenty-seven ornamental streetlights for a not 
to exceed price of $176,913.50 

2. Revise the quantity of decorative streetlights to order 

3. Do not approve the Resolution and provide staff with further direction 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

Delivery will be made within 4 to 6 weeks after receipt of order 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Approve Resolution No. R-70-13 awarding All-Phase Electric Supply Co. a 
contract for the purchase of twenty-seven (27) ornamental streetlight for a not to 
exceed price of $176,913.50 

ATTACHMENTS  1. Exhibit A – IFB 1310 Bid Results 
2. Light Pole details 

 



P
ro

je
ct

IF
B 

13
10

 - 
D

ec
or

at
iv

e 
S

tre
et

lig
ht

B
id

 O
pe

ni
ng

Tu
es

da
y,

 A
pr

il 
16

, 2
01

3 
at

 2
:0

0P
M

C
om

pa
ny

Ad
dr

es
s

C
ity

St
at

e
Zi

p
To

ta
l B

id
A

ll-
P

ha
se

 E
le

ct
ric

 S
up

pl
y 

C
om

pa
ny

75
0 

N
. L

ef
fe

l L
an

e
S

pr
in

gf
ie

ld
O

H
45

50
1

17
6,

91
3.

50
$ 

   
 

P
ow

er
 L

in
e 

S
up

pl
y

14
03

 N
eu

br
ec

ht
 R

d.
Li

m
a

O
H

45
80

1
17

8,
46

8.
00

$ 
   

 
D

ic
km

an
 S

up
pl

y
19

91
 S

t. 
M

ar
y 

A
ve

.
S

id
ne

y
O

H
45

36
5

18
0,

15
4.

15
$ 

   
 

W
es

co
12

55
 D

an
ne

r R
d.

Au
ro

ra
O

H
44

20
2

18
0,

15
4.

57
$ 

   
 

M
es

co
 E

le
ct

ric
al

 S
up

pl
y

04
88

0 
S

t R
t 6

6
N

ew
 B

re
m

en
O

H
45

86
9

18
1,

54
1.

00
$ 

   
 

B
ro

w
ns

to
w

n 
E

le
ct

ric
 S

up
pl

y
16

71
 C

o.
 R

d.
 3

2N
Be

lle
fo

nt
ai

ne
O

H
43

31
1

18
2,

01
6.

00
$ 

   
 





 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-71-13 
 

A RESOLUTION ACQUIRING THE SERVICES OF 
P&G POWER, LLC FOR THE POWER SYSTEM 

 
 WHEREAS, the present operations of the Power System require the services 
of a construction contractor; 
 
 WHEREAS, after said solicitation of bids, bids were opened resulting in the 
tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit “A’ attached hereto; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: P&G Power, LLC is hereby retained by the City of Piqua as a 
construction contractor.   
 
 SEC. 2 : The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrant on the appropriate account of the city treasury 
according to contract terms, not to exceed $485,377. 
 

SEC. 3: It is found and determined that all formal actions of this 
Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were adopted 
in an open meeting of this Commission, and that all deliberations of this Board and of 
any of its committees that resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to 
the public, in compliance with all legal requirements; 
 
 SEC. 4: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
          LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

 

 

 

AG

 

 

 

ME

RE

SU

GENDA CLA

APPROVA

BA

BUD
FINAN

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN

DGETING AN
CIAL IMPAC

 

 

E 

 

May 7, 2

E 

 

A RESO
THE PO

Y 
Name &

Departm

N 
Conse

S 
City M

Asst. 

Depar
 
 

D 
 
 

 

On July 
allowed 
Engineer
between
replace 
Commis
Resourc

 

The Pow
April 16
the lowe
Project. 
unforese

 

D 
T 

 

Budgete

Expendi

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

2013 

OLUTION AC
OWER SYST

& Title: Nicho

ment: Power 

ent 

Manager 

City Manag

rtment Direc

17, 2012, t
the Powe

ring, Inc. (P
n substation 4

thirty-two 
ssion approv
es for the pu

wer System r
6, 2013.  The
est and best
 There is a 

een expenses

d $:  $

ture $:  $

mmissi
ff Repo

CQUIRING T
TEM 

olas Berger,

System 

Ordinanc

ger/Developm

ctor;  

he City Com
er System 
SE).  PSE p
4 and 5.  Th
(32) main-

ved Resoluti
urchase of th

received bids
e Power Syst
t bid to com
15% conting
s. 

$575,000 

$485,377 

ion Ag
ort 

THE SERVI

 Asst. Powe

ce 

ment 

mmission ap
to acquire 

performed an
he assessmen
-line poles. 
ion R-30-13
hirty-two stee

s from nine 
tem determi
mplete the 6
gency added

genda  

CES OF P&

er System Di

Resolution 

Asst. City M

Law Directo

Other: Ener

pproved Res
the servic

n assessment
nt resulted i

 On Mar
 awarding a
el transmissi

different con
ined that P&
69kv Transm

d to P&G’s b

Item 

          

&G POWER

irector 

Re

Manager/Fin

or 

rgy Board 

solution R-1
ces of Pow
t of the trans
in the immed
rch 5, 201
a contract to
ion poles.  

nstruction co
&G Power, L

mission Lin
base bid to a

# 12

 

, LLC FOR 

gular 

nance 

06-12 which
wer System
smission line
diate need to
3, the City
o Bridgewel

ontractors on
LLC provided
ne Hardening
allow for any

h 
m 
e 
o 
y 
ll 

n 
d 
g 
y 



Source of Funds: 190-3355 ($575,000) 

190-3392 ($300,000) 

Narrative:  Included in the 2013 Power System budget is $575,000 to 
rebuild the transmission line between substation 4 and 5. 
The services provided by P&G Power totals $485,377.  In 
addition, the steel poles purchased from Bridgewell 
Resources had an expense of $165,439 totaling $650,816 for 
both poles and contract services.  A planned $300,000 
vehicle replacement will be delayed to 2014 to provide a 
source for the additional funds.  The cost for hardware is 
still pending for this project 

 
OPTIONS 

 
 

1. Approve Resolution No. R-71-13 acquiring the services of P&G Power, 
LLC at a cost not to exceed $485,377. 

2. Do not approve the Resolution and provide staff with further direction 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

P&G Power will start once the material is onsite for the project.  The estimated 
start date is the first week of July.  Once started, the project will take 3 months 
to complete. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Approve Resolution No. R-71-13 acquiring the services of P&G Power, LLC. 

ATTACHMENTS  1. Exhibit A – Bid Summary 

 



P
ro

je
ct

69
kV

 T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 L

in
e 

S
ub

 #
4 

to
 S

ub
 #

5 
Li

ne
 H

ar
de

ni
ng

B
id

 O
pe

ni
ng

Tu
es

da
y,

 A
pr

il 
16

, 2
01

3 
at

 1
0:

00
A

M

C
om

pa
ny

Ad
dr

es
s

C
ity

St
at

e
Zi

p
To

ta
l B

id
P

&
G

 P
ow

er
16

 S
ou

th
 G

ra
ce

 S
t.

W
he

at
fie

ld
IN

46
39

2
42

2,
06

7.
36

$ 
   

   
   

  
V

au
gh

n 
In

du
st

rie
s,

 L
LC

12
01

 E
as

t F
in

dl
ay

 S
t.

C
ar

ey
O

H
43

31
6

63
5,

79
5.

50
$ 

   
   

   
  

P
ik

e 
E

le
ct

ric
, L

LC
10

0 
P

ik
e 

W
ay

M
ou

nt
 A

iry
N

C
27

03
0

89
2,

70
7.

18
$ 

   
   

   
  

Th
ay

er
 P

ow
er

74
00

 M
ar

ke
t R

d
Fa

irv
ie

w
P

A
16

41
5

1,
11

8,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

P
ow

er
 S

ec
ur

e
16

09
 H

er
ita

ge
 C

om
m

er
ce

 C
t.

W
ak

e 
Fo

re
st

N
C

27
58

7
1,

14
5,

29
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
N

ew
 R

iv
er

 E
le

ct
ric

al
 C

or
p

60
05

 W
es

te
rv

ille
 R

d.
W

es
te

rv
ille

O
H

43
08

1
N

O
 B

ID
N

. G
. G

ilb
er

t C
or

p.
10

1 
S

. M
ai

n 
S

t
P

ar
ke

r C
ity

IN
47

36
8

N
O

 B
ID

L.
E

. M
ey

er
s 

C
om

pa
ny

62
20

 S
ou

th
 B

el
m

on
t

In
di

an
ap

ol
is

IN
46

21
7

N
O

 B
ID

D
av

is
 H

. E
llio

t
PO

 B
ox

 1
21

08
Le

xi
ng

to
n

KY
40

58
0

N
O

 B
ID



 
RESOLUTION NO. R-72-13 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DONATION OF 208 FOURTH STREET, 

PARCEL NO. N44-250339 TO HABITAT OF HUMANITY OF MIAMI COUNTY, OHIO 
 
WHEREAS, 208 Fourth Street is a vacant lot owned by the City of Piqua; and 

 
WHEREAS, the vacant lot can be redeveloped for housing providing 

revitalization and development to the neighborhood in which it is located; and  
 

WHEREAS, Habitat for Humanity of Miami County, Ohio has shown an interest in 
having this property donated for the development of a house to promote 
homeownership in the City of Piqua; and  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to donate 208 Fourth Street, 
Parcel No. N44-250339 to Habitat for Humanity of Miami County, Ohio. 

 
SEC. 2.  There is a public benefit to the donation of 208 Fourth Street to Habitat 

of Humanity of Miami County, Ohio to facilitate the development of new housing in 
the neighborhood. 

 
SEC. 3.   This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the earliest period 

allowed by law. 
              
         _________________________ 
         LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 



 

Item # 13
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
May 7, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution Authorizing the Donation of 208 Fourth Street, Parcel No. N44-
250339 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
Department:  Development 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
X  Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X City Manager      Asst. City Manager/Finance 
    Asst. City Manager/Development      Law Director 
    Department Director;  X  Other:  City Planner  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
The City of Piqua currently owns a vacant lot in the Shawnee Neighborhood 
located at 208 Fourth Street, which is at the corner of Fourth and Ohio Streets.  
The property is located in the predominantly residential neighborhood.   
 
Habitat for Humanity of Miami County, Ohio has expressed an interest in 
having the lot donated to them.  The type of residential development built by 
Habitat of Humanity is consistent with the fabric of the neighborhood.    
Additionally, providing the property to Habitat for Humanity of Miami County, 
Ohio will allow the City of Piqua to divest itself of an ongoing maintenance 
need. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $0 
Expenditure $:  $0 
Source of Funds:  
Narrative:   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the Resolution and allow the donation to take place. 
2. Do not approve the Resolution and have the City of Piqua retain the 

property.   
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The donation can close within thirty days of adoption. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff would recommend that the donation occur. 

ATTACHMENTS  None 

 




